
Page 1 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 

 April 15, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Brendan McNamara, Chair 
  Fran McMahon, Vice Chair 

Ann Carnaby,Clerk 
Keith Lessard 

  Tracy Emerick 
  Mark Olson 
  James Waddell, Selectman Member 
  Jason Bachand, Town Planner 
  Laurie Olivier, Office Manager/Planning  
 
ABSENT:   
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Chairman McNamara began the meeting at 7:00 p.m. by introducing the Board members 
and leading the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 
 

II. ATTENTING TO BE HEARD 
 

III.  CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

IV. NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
15-016    86 Woodland Road                        
Map: 148 Lot:  4 
Applicant:  RKDOLLA, LLC 
Owner of Record:  Same 
Amended Subdivision:  Amend previously-granted subdivision (PB mtg dtd 11/19/14) 
regarding observation monitoring well locations & request for minimal de-icing of roadway per 
Town Ordinance. 
 
 Joseph Coronati, Jones & Beach, appeared with Bob Dockham, Dockham Builders 
(owner of the property).  This was conditionally approved.  The applicant had to go to the 
Selectmen for certain approvals, i.e. light poles, fire hydrant and bond amount.  Much 
discussion centered around the proposed subdivision road that may someday be a Town road.  
There are observation wells proposed to be in the right of way.  The observation wells were 
conditioned to be in the right of way and the Selectmen were against having them there.  In 
case there were issues down the road, the Town would have to handle them.  One of the notes 
in the conditions about no salt on the road was discussed.  They are in the Aquifer Protection 
Zone.  There is a section about de-icing.  They are asking the Board to change the language of 
the de-icing chemicals to match Town wording and to move the observation wells out of the 
Town right of way.   



Page 2 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 

 April 15, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 Mr. Coronati showed how the new plan depicts the observation wells outside of the 
right of way.  If the Board votes on it tonight, they will issue easements to Aquarion for access 
to the wells, in perpetuity.  They believe that will solve the Selectmen's concerns.   
 Mr. McMahon doesn't mind moving the observation wells out of right of way.  Mr. 
McMahon discussed contamination.  Mr. McMorran says contamination is not a problem.   
 Mr. Lessard read the salt issue in Mr. McMorran’s letter aloud.  The developer is 
seeking to resolve the issue. The Water Company is okay with our language about salt.  He 
said it is coming from Aquarion.  Aquarion is okay with that as well was reiterated by Mr. 
Lessard. 
 Mr. Olson asked how deep the observation wells are.  Both wells are about 50'.  Mr. 
Emerick asked if they fail, whose responsibility is it.  It is not a water producing well.  Once 
wells are installed, they are turned over to Aquarion.   
 Ms. Carnaby asked about the salt issue.  The Aquarion letter says “reduced salt”; our 
Planner’s memo uses wording of “minimal use of de-icing chemicals”.  She wants a “not to 
exceed” percentage.  Mr. McNamara said we will match it with the Town's mix.  Mr. 
McNamara thinks it's an 80/20 mix.  Ms. Carnaby said “minimal” is so vague and said they 
should use the lower amount of two mixes.   
 Mr. Bachand said the amended condition mirrors what is in the Zoning Ordinance.  He 
took out a couple of words that do not apply.  Ms. Carnaby would like to be more specific.    
 Mr. Waddell (who spoke with Chris J of DPW) said there is not a separate mix for 
different roads.   
 
PUBLIC 
 Mr. McMorran (Aquarion) appeared.  He said Chris Jacobs said he always thought they 
used sand/salt mix.  There are different mixes per Mr. McMorran.  Sometimes they use salt; 
sometimes they do not.  Minimize is a good term in his opinion.  He would like to see the 
Town manage the roads rather than the Association.   
  
MOTION by Mr. Emerick to approve the amended subdivision plan along with the conditions 
contained in the Planner’s Memorandum dated April 15th. 
SECOND by Mr. Olson. 
VOTE:  7 – 0 – 0     MOTION PASSED. 
 
V. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES of April 1, 2015. 
 

MOTION by Mr. Lessard to approve the April 1, 2015 Minutes. 
SECOND by by McMahon. 
VOTE:    6 – 0 - 1 (Olson)       MOTION PASSED. 

 
VI. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 

 April 15, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 Update on Goals Meeting with the Board of Selectmen 
 
 Mr. Bachand discussed that he attended the Board of Selectmen goals meeting last 
Tuesday.  The downtown and rail trail were discussed.   
 Mr. Bachand discussed the Zoning Review Subcommittee to discuss best uses and 
possible rezoning in town.  He's received a couple of interesting study area requests; beach 
area and Exeter Road area. 
 Impact fees were mentioned.   
 Application Fees were discussed.   
 Working on the Zoning Ordinance and overall improved efficiency with reviewing plan 
documents was discussed.   
 Mr. Waddell said the meeting was to hear from Department Heads to get communication 
from Selectmen and the different departments in Town and he felt it went well.   
 Mr. Lessard asked about application fees.  Ms. Olivier has been working on them.  Goals 
from the Regional Master Plan should be added also per Ms. Carnaby.   
 
 Mr. McMahon said the downtown area is important.  Keeping the momentum going was 
discussed.  Mr. McMahon said economic development was discussed and it's worth talking 
about.   
 Mr. Lessard cautioned the Board about our Planner's time being used efficiently.  A 
Planning Department of many staff can go down many paths.  Mr. Lessard wants Mr. 
Bachand to do his job well, rather than having too many masters in pursuing things to satisfy 
other things that a huge department could do.  He noted the office is managed well and he 
appreciates the enthusiasm.   
 Ms. Carnaby agrees, but thinks it's part of our job to narrow down goals and set priorities.   
 Mr. McNamara wants to pursue street lights.  The Planning Board and Selectmen have 
different points of view.  He wants to reach out to Mr. Welch and Attorney Gearreald and 
talk to them and see if there is a way to come up with a solution. 
 Mr. Waddell said they discussed this the other night.  He noted the Planning Board is 
elected and Selectmen are elected and the Selectmen feel a meeting might not be as 
productive.  He felt that the joint meeting has gone away. 
 Mr. Bachand said he did ask Mr. Welch about the meeting yesterday.  It has not been 
scheduled yet.  Mr. Emerick said we have to clear the air.  What came to the Planning Board 
tonight is a Planning Board job; Selectmen took authority over it.  Mr. Emerick said that is 
not the case.  Mr. Emerick said the issue needs to be resolved.  Applicants don't go to 
Selectmen to get lights approved.   
 Mr. McMahon said there are more fundamental issues than street lights. Street acceptance 
is very fundamental.  We won't accept streets that aren't done in accordance with Regs.  We 
aren't taking drainage systems.  It is substantial and fundamental change.  The goal is to find 
what they are looking for and what are we comfortable with.   
 Mr. Olson said it is painting with a broad brush and that a minority of the Selectmen 
believe they have this authority.  Mr. Emerick said the Selectmen voted on this plan 
(referring to 86 Woodland Road) so that is not a minority.  There was a vote to have them 



Page 4 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 

 April 15, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

come back to the Planning Board.  Mr. Waddell said both Chairmen and Mr. Welch 
and Attorney Gearreald and Mr. Bachand should meet.  The Planning Board agrees 
with that.  Mr. Emerick said it is a matter of law.   
 Mr. Lessard said a lot of things are needing to be corrected.  The Plan review process 
helped.   
 We worked out the fire hydrant one.  Mr. Lessard agrees it should be a clear path. 
 Mr. Olson doesn't understand why a utility can't be in an easement.   
 Mr. McNamara asked if the Planning Board wants him to reach out to the Town 
Manager.  Mr. McMahon said we want to know where this stands.  Mr. Lessard said if our 
Subdivision and Site Regs have to change, we need to know.  Mr. McMahon said the 
Planning Board has asked Mr. Bachand to look at this.   
 

 Proposed Zoning Review Subcommittee 
 
 Mr. Bachand discussed the Joe Valle meeting and Phil Bean discussing the area west of 
Ashworth Avenue regarding potential re-zoning.  Mr. Bachand’s initial thinking was to 
combine this task with the Vision Committee.  He discussed now having a Zoning Review 
Subcommittee.  It would be an ongoing, active committee.   
 The Planning Board would vote to establish the Subcommittee.  He recommends having 
two members from the Planning Board, one member from the Board of Selectmen; one from 
the Conservation Commission and one from the ZBA.  Residents, of course, will also be 
sought and selecting up to five was recommended.  Meetings would be open to the public.  
Mr. Bachand would send a Press Release to the newspaper seeking letters of interest.  This 
could be submitted tomorrow.  Mr. Emerick noted that re-zoning is not a crisis.  Mr. Bachand 
put together a suggested time table.  Mr. Bachand also spoke with Joe Valle yesterday, and 
he is on board with the idea.  It is an advisory subcommittee to the Planning Board.  First 
areas to look at include the Montrone property as well. 
 Ms. Carnaby asked about the Montrone property.  She asked if it would be a Vision 
Committee that would also be brainstorming on the property.  Mr. Bachand thought about 
that, as the Vision Committee did take this area up in the past.  Mr. Bachand said the Vision 
Committee is really part of the Master Plan process.  This new subcommittee, however, can 
also incorporate the Vision Committee’s previous efforts.     
 
MOVED by Mr. Emerick to have the Planning Office form the subcommittee. 
Meeting dates and times will be determined.  It would have to be decided prior to sending out 
Notice.  Mr. Bachand thinks 6:00 or 7:00 p.m. could work and noted that he we can work out 
times, etc.   
SECOND by Mr. Lessard.   
VOTE:    7 – 0 – 0     MOTION PASSED. 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

  MINUTES 

 April 15, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
 Rockingham Planning Commission – Vacancy for Alternate 

 
 Mr. Bachand discussed the vacancy for an alternate for the Rockingham Planning 
Commission with the passing of Maury's Friedman (his term was to expire in June of 2015).  The 
Commission now has three members; Barbara Kravitz, Fran McMahon and Mark Olson and Ann 
Carnaby is an alternate.  He asked if we should advertise for another alternate.  We don't need 
any more.  Mr. Emerick said to throw the idea out and see.  It's not an issue with the RPC. 
   
 Safe Routes to School was asked about by Mr. Olson. Mr. Bachand attended a couple of 
meetings; they did a walk around Mill Road and High Street.  He believes they are scheduling a 
public event for Saturday morning at 9:00 a.m.  Mr. Olson noted that Tony Ciolfi has worked 
really hard on this program.  The program is called Safe Routes to School, but it is an amenity to 
the community.  It helps all people walk semi-safely in Town.  There is money to use as well.   
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by Mr. Emerick to adjourn. 
SECOND by Mr. McMahon. 
VOTE:  7 – 0 – 0   MOTION PASSED. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laurie Olivier, Office Manager/Planning 
 
 
 

**PLEASE NOTE** 

ITEMS NOT CALLED OR IN PROGRESS BY 10:00 P.M. 

MAY BE CONTINUED TO THE NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 


